
   

Membership:

For further information contact: 
(LB Brent) Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer
020 8937 1354; joe.kwateng@brent .co.uk

(LB Harrow) Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
0208 454 1542 miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: www.brent.gov.uk/committees

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting

Trading Standards 
Joint Advisory Board

Monday 21 March 2016 at 7:00pm
Board Room 2 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ

Members Representing First alternates Second alternates
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors:

Aden
Long
Stopp
Ferry
Mithani
Parmar

Hector
Hossain
Hall



Agenda
Introductions, if appropriate.
Election of Chair for the meeting (from amongst the Brent members)
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members

Item Page

1 Election of Chair 

2 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests 

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4

4 Matters arising 

5 Deputations (if any) 

6 Trading Standards Fees and charges 2016/17 5 - 8

This report provides Members with information concerning the proposed 
level of fees and charges to be made by the Brent & Harrow Trading 
Standards service in 2016/17.

7 Underage Sales report 2015 9 - 18

This report provides information about the Trading Standard’s duties in 
enforcing underage sales legislation and a summary of this year’s 
underage sales work the Service has carried out.
 

8 Trading Standards - Harrow 2015/16 Budget Position (to follow) 

9 Any other urgent business 

Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Head of Executive and Member Services (London Borough of Brent) 
or his representative before the meeting in accordance with the 
constitutions of both councils. 

 Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.
 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 



members of the public.






TRADING STANDARDS JOINT ADVISORY BOARD
MINUTES 

11 JUNE 2015

PRESENT: 
Councillors Keith Ferry London Borough of Harrow

Mrs Vina Mithani
Varsha Parmar
Dan Filson London Borough of Brent
Janice Long

Apologies were received from: Councillor Abdi Aden (Brent)

Officers in Attendance were:
London Borough of Brent
Simon  Legg, Senior Regulatory Service Manager
David Thrale, Head of Regulatory Services

London Borough of Harrow
Camille James, Project Manager
Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Election of Chair 

RESOLVED: That Councillor Keith Ferry be appointed as Chair for the 
meeting.

2. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests 

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by 
Members.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2015,  be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

4. Matters arising 

There were none.

5. Deputations 



2
Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board - 11 June 2015

RESOLVED:  To note that none were received.

6. Trading Standards Annual Accounts 2014-2015 

The Board received  a report from  the Head of Regulatory  Services  on  
the annual  accounts for 2014/15. It was noted that there was a net 
surplus  of £57,205, largely due to a wider management restructure in 
Brent Council and a resultant salaries saving. Within that net surplus, 
there had been a shortfall in  the Proceeds of Crime  (POCA)  income as 
only  £120,000 of the budgeted £250,000 had been received.

Members were advised that a report would be submitted to a future 
meeting on work currently being undertaken to review whether the 
budgetary target for proceeds of crime work was sustainable.

In response to questions, it was reported that:

• The accounts only showed three quarterly payments for POCA,  as 
the fourth  quarterly  payment from the Home Office  would  not be 
received until  the end of the financial  year. Payments made on  
the last  day of March were accrued to 2015/16. The payments 
were difficult to predict in any given period as the court could decide 
to spread the payments;

• Planning was a large source of cases and Trading Standards 
received a  share  of   the  proceeds  to   cover  financial   
investigation   costs. Payments were distributed, in accordance with 
government guidelines, to the prosecutor, financial investigator, 
Court  Service and 50%  to the Treasury;

• Due to  the surplus  arising  from  vacancies  in  2014/15, the lower  
net POCA receipts did not present an immediate budgetary issue 
but there were concerns as to long  term viability  should  net POAC  
receipts  fall below budget again in 2015/16. The consortium had a 
financial reserve that was a little  below  its  optimum  level  – two 
years of budgeted net POAC receipts. At 2014/15 levels of net 
POCA receipts, the reserve would not be exhausted for four years. 
A report would be submitted to a future meeting on the viability of 
POCA  arrangements, together with options for strengthening the 
position, which might include undertaking POCA  investigations for 
other Councils, both  in trading standards and other regulatory 
services;

• Trading  Standards  had  sufficient  legal  and court  powers  to  
obtain information from HMRC but it took time, particularly for complex. 
Investigations.  Planning  cases  were sometimes  more productive  
for POAC  recovery as  they usually  involved  a fixed  asset,  that  
is  the property;

• Work undertaking financial investigations for audit and investigation 
for benefit fraud had stopped, since benefit had become the 



3
Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board - 11 June 2015

responsibility of the Government’s Department of Works and 
Pensions.

The Chair  stressed  that the report had not  fully reported the net 
benefits  to both  councils  arising  from  the proportion  of  POCA  receipts  
recovered  for council  prosecuting  teams. This  meant that, even when 
only  breaking  even, trading  standards  was making  money for  other 
parts  of  the Councils,  for example through  planning cases. The POCA 
Strategy and publicity acted as a deterrent.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

7. Trading Standards Annual Report 2014-2015 

The Board received a report which detailed the work of the Trading 
Standards Consortium  for 2014/15. It was noted that, as previously  
requested by  the Board,  the  report  referenced  data from  previous  
years to  enable benchmarking.

Members were advised  that the service  was developing  a more risk  
based framework   as  a  result   of  a  reduction   in   powers  arising   from  
the  2012
Protection  of  Freedom  Act.  The  number  of  inspections  would  reduce  
as officers  could  only  enter and inspect  if there were specific  reasons to 
do  so such as intelligence leads, risk assessment and businesses track 
record.

In response to questions, it was reported that:

• Records of website  compliance  checks did  not  enable  statistics  to 
be separately maintained for the internet component of high street 
businesses;

• With   regard  to   overseas   websites,   if   sufficient   information   
was submitted  a website  could  be forced  to  be  taken down  but  
it  was usually  not  possible  for  the  service  to  recover  improper  
payments made by local users;

• Specific  powers enabled  spot checks for sale  of restricted  goods 
to children, possibly prosecuted for first instance depending on 
circumstances;

• It  was  difficult  to  determine  the  protective  characteristics,  such  
as ethnicity, age, gender etc of businesses other than sole 
traders, as the staff,  managers, owners will  almost  always  have a 
range of differing protected characteristics;

• Trading   standards   worked with  a  variety   of  different   
enforcement agencies as regards shisha establishments and 
doorstep crime;



4
Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board - 11 June 2015

• 17  Freedom  of  Information  (FOI)  requests had been  received  
and responded to within  the statutory timescale  on  such general  
items  as surveillance   and   underage   sales   The   service   
provided   primary authority services for ten businesses

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

8. Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board - Forward Plan 

The Board received information concerning forthcoming Joint Advisory Board 
meetings and the planned programme of reports to the Board.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.00 pm).

9. Any other urgent business 

None.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

(Signed) Chair

K. FERRY
Chair



1

London Boroughs of Brent and Harrow
Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board 

21 March 2016

Report from the Head of Regulatory 
Service

For 
Action/Information*
*Delete as appropriate 

Wards affected:
ALL

Trading Standards Fees and charges 2016/17

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides Members with information concerning the proposed level 
of fees and charges to be made by the Brent & Harrow Trading Standards 
service in 2016/17.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members consider the report and make any recommendations where 
appropriate.

3. DETAILS

3.1 Paragraph 13(f) of the Consortium Agreement states that the Board ‘should 
consider and make recommendations on the level of fees and charges to be 
made to the public in respect of any part of the service, for consideration by 
whoever is authorised to make fees and charges decisions by each respective 
council’s constitution’.

3.2 The Service’s fee structure is applied at the same level for each borough.

3.3 Fees fall into three categories, as follows:

3.3.1 Statutory fees are set nationwide by Government and accordingly, local 
authorities have no discretion to vary them. These fees apply to explosive 
(firework) licenses charged by the Harrow team. In Brent, this function is 
carried out by the Licensing Team and is not a Trading Standards function. The 
fees are set by the Health and Safety Executive by virtue of the Health and 
Safety Fees Regulations 2012 as amended. The fees have remained the same 
since 2014.



2

Service Duration Fee
1 year £178

2 years £234

3 years £292

4 years £360

Licence to store explosives where, by virtue of 
regulation 27 of, and Schedule 5 to, the 2014 
Regulations, a minimum separation distance of 
greater than 0 metres is prescribed

Explosives licence 251-2,000Kg (fireworks Harrow)

5 years £407

1 year £83

2 years £141

3 years £198

4 years £256

Renewal of licence to store explosives where a 
minimum separation distance of greater than 0 
metres is prescribed

Explosives licence 251-2,000Kg (fireworks Harrow 
Renewal 5 years £313

1 year £105

2 years £136

3 years £166

4 years £198

Licence to store explosives where no minimum 
separation distance or a 0 metres minimum 
separation distance is prescribed

Explosives licence 1-250Kg (fireworks Harrow)

5 years £229

1 year £52

2 years £83

3 years £115

4 years £146

Renewal of licence to store explosives where no 
minimum separation distance or a 0 metres 
minimum separation distance is prescribed

Explosives licence 1-250Kg (fireworks Harrow 
Renewal) 5 years £178
Varying the name of licensee or address of site £35

Fireworks All Year Round licence - Fireworks 
Regulations 2004 Reg 9 1 year £500

Any other kind of variation (we are able to charge 
any ‘reasonable’ cost to the licensing authority of 
having the work carried out (suggested fee per 
hour)

£35

Transfer of licence £35

Replacement of licence if lost £35



3

3.3.2 A RPI escalator applies to Primary Authority partnerships where we have 
partnered with businesses who work across the whole of the UK, who chose to 
receive their advice and guidance from one Regulatory Service as opposed to 
multiple authorities wherever they trade.  The fee charged has to be on a cost 
recovery basis only. Brent’s Executive agreed on 17 June 2013, in a report 
entitled “Introduction of a Charge Based Regulatory Advice Service for 
Businesses”, to increase the rates on an annual basis on 1st April each year by 
the annual change in the Retail Price Index (RPI) for January of the year 
concerned. At January 2016, the 12 month Retail Prices Index was 1.3%.

3.3.3

3.4 The remaining fees are determined annually, with any change in the fee 
charged being determined each year according to prevailing circumstances. In 
addition, we need to remain competitive compared to fees charged by other 
local authorities. The prevailing rate of RPI, i.e. 1.3% has been used to 
determine the suggested fees for 2016/17. The exception to this are fees for 
Weights and Measures work. These fees have been recommended following 
guidance issued by the Association of Chief Trading Standards Officers.

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Service VAT 2015/16 2016/17
(excl 
VAT)

(incl 
VAT)

Primary Authority – fixed 
contract (per hour) 0% 54.20 54.90
Primary Authority - pay as you 
go (per hour) 0% 67.80 68.68

Service VAT 2015/16 2016/17
(excl 
VAT)

(incl 
VAT)

Registration of premises for auction 0% 317.10 321.22
Verification of weights & measures 
equipment 20% 58.56 59.60 71.52
Calibration of weights for business 20% 58.56 59.60 71.52
Testing for other LAs (per item) 0% 58.56 59.60
Additional officer testing assistance 
(per hour) 0% 35.33 35.87
Use of safety lab (per hour) 20% 61.40 62.20 74.64
Officers working Stadium events 
(per hour) 0% 35.80 36.27
Financial Investigator (per hour 
excluding share of any 
incentivisation scheme money) 0% 35.00 35.45



4

4.1 Fee income is a relatively small contributor to the Trading Standards Service 
budget, with budgeted fee income totaling £23,500 for 2015/16 (excluding 
Court cost or proceeds of crime recovery). At the time of writing, the income 
received from the fees subject to this report amounted to £25,245. The 
anticipated rise in fees is expected to increase income for 2016/17 although as 
the suggested amounts are only small, we do not expect to receive a 
significantly higher income unless there is growth in the amount of fee paying 
services we undertake during the year.

5 STAFF IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None.

6 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

6.1 Any person wishing to obtain more information should contact Simon Legg, 
Senior Regulatory Service Manager, Regulatory Services, Brent Civic Centre, 
Engineers Way, Wembley Middlesex HA9 0FJ.

SIMON LEGG
SENIOR REGULATORY SERVICE MANAGER



1

London Boroughs of Brent and Harrow
Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board 

21 March 2016

Report from the Head of Regulatory 
Service

For 
Action/Information Wards affected:

ALL

UNDERAGE SALES REPORT 2015

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides information about the Trading Standard’s duties 
enforcing underage sales legislation and a summary of this year’s underage 
sales work the Service has carried out.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members consider the report and comment where appropriate noting the 
contribution made by the Trading Standards Service preventing illegal 
underage sales and endorse the continued approach to enforcement.

3  DETAILS

3.1 This report is presented to the Trading Standards Joint Advisory Board to 
provide Members an overview of the work which the Service is carrying 
out in relation to preventing underage sales. We welcome any comments 
or questions.

Background to our Work

3.2 The impact of underage drinking and smoking can be devastating on the 
health and development of a young person whilst at the same time, 
communities can also be badly affected by groups of  underage drinkers 
which can often lead to anti-social behaviour and a fear of crime.

3.3 As members are aware, in response to these issues, the Service 
maintains a regular programme of underage test purchasing operations 
throughout the year with our current work plan requiring 125 Brent 
underage test purchases and 135 in Harrow. The frequency of these visits 
is spread throughout the year but visits are increased during school 
holiday times.



2

3.4 Whilst the law regulates the sale of various age restricted items, we 
prioritise our operations to focus on the sale of alcohol, tobacco and 
fireworks, these being the items young people most likely will attempt 
purchase causing harm. By tackling underage sales, we are protecting 
this vulnerable group who are susceptible to peer pressure and are easily 
influenced.

3.5 The Health and Social Care Information Centre report titled ‘Smoking, 
drinking and drug use among young people in England in 2013’ monitored 
smoking, drinking and drug use among secondary school pupils aged 11 
to 15. Information was obtained from 5,187 pupils in 174 schools 
throughout England in the autumn term of 2013.

3.6 Alarmingly, 48% of pupils said that they had tried smoking or drunk 
alcohol at least once in their lives. 16% had done one or more of these 
recently. They were most likely to have drunk alcohol in the last week 
(9%), rather than smoked in the last week (6%) despite the fact you need 
to be legally aged 18 or over to buy tobacco or alcohol products.

3.7 On the 1 October 2015 the Nicotine Inhaling Products (Age of Sale and 
Proxy Purchasing) Regulations 2015 SI 2015 No. 895 came into force. 
The regulations made under Part 5 of the Children and Families Act 2014, 
make it an offence to sell nicotine inhaling products commonly known as e 
Cigarettes to persons under 18. 

3.8 The Regulations provide exemptions for nicotine inhaling products that are 
licensed as medicines so that they can be made available to children and 
young people if they have a doctor’s prescription for such products or 
where it could lawfully be sold to a child as a medicinal product. 
Otherwise, a retailer found guilty of selling e-cigarettes to under 18s could 
be fined up to £2,500.

3.9 The same legislation also extended the law in relation to proxy purchases 
creating offences for an adult to purchase, or attempt to purchase, 
tobacco, cigarettes, e-cigarette devices and e-liquids on behalf of a 
person aged under 18. Whilst this legislation is welcomed, it is the adult 
making the purchase who would be committing the offence, not the 
retailer. In practical terms, this makes enforcement of the legislation 
difficult as apprehending members of the public in the street can not be 
done without Police assistance. 

3.10 As with most underage sales legislation, the law provides those accused 
of an underage sale offence a due diligence defence, meaning that if it 
can be shown a business owner or sales person has done all that is 
reasonable to avoid committing the offence, then they should not be 
prosecuted.

3.11 Whilst our work focuses on the age restricted products that are most 
likely to cause harm to young people within Brent or Harrow, there are 



3

many items which it is illegal to sell to persons under a particular age. 
These are shown in the table: 

Product Age 
restriction

Legislation Maximum penalty Enforcement 
Agency

Air 
Weapons

18 and 
over

The Firearms Act 1968 Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards/

Police
Aerosol 
Paint

16 and 
over

Anti-social Behaviour 
Act 2003

Fine of up to £2,500 Trading 
Standards

Alcohol 18 and 
over

The Licensing Act 2003 Unlimited fine and forfeit 
of licence

Trading 
Standards/

Police
Christmas 
Crackers

12 and 
over

The Pyrotechnic Articles 
(Safety) Regulations 
2015

Unlimited fine and three 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Crossbows 18 and 
over

Crossbows Act 1987 Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

E 
Cigarettes 

18 and 
over 
(unless licensed 
as a medicine)

Children and Families 
Act 2014 and Nicotine 
Inhaling Products (Age 
of Sale and Proxy 
Purchasing) 
Regulations 2015

Fine of up to £2,500 Trading 
Standards

Fireworks 
and 
sparklers

18 and 
over

The Pyrotechnic Articles 
(Safety) Regulations 
2015

Unlimited fine and three 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Gambling 18 and 
Over

Gambling Act of 2005 Unlimited fine and/or 
imprisoned for up to 51 
weeks

Gambling 
Commission

Knives / 
Axes / 
Blades

18 and 
over

Criminal Justice Act 
1988 (as amended by 
the Offensive Weapons 
Act 1996) and the 
Violent Crime Reduction 
Act 2006

Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Lighter 
refills 
containing 
butane

18 and 
over

The Cigarette Lighter 
Refill (Safety) 
Regulations 1999

Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Lottery 
tickets / 
'instant win' 
cards

16 and 
over

The National Lottery etc 
Act 1993 / National 
Lottery Regulations 
1994

Unlimited fine and two 
years' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Party 
poppers 
and similar 
low-hazard 

16 and 
over

The Pyrotechnic Articles 
(Safety) Regulations 
2015

Unlimited fine and three 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards



4

low-noise 
fireworks

Petrol 16 and 
over

Petroleum 
(Consolidation) 
Regulations 2014

Unlimited fine and 12 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Proxy 
Purchasing

Over 18 Children & Families Act 
2014

Fixed Penalty Notice £90 
discounted to £60 if paid 
within 15 days or legal 
proceedings if fine not 
paid punishable up to a 
fine of £2,500

Trading 
Standards

Sunbeds 18 and 
over

Sunbeds (Regulation) 
Act 2010

Fine of up to £20,000 Local 
Authority, 

(preferably 
Environmental 

Health)
Tattooing 18 and 

over
Tattooing of Minors Act 
1969

Fine of up to £1,000 Police

Tobacco 
products

18 and 
over

Children and Young 
Persons (Protection 
from Tobacco) Act 1991 
as amended 

Fine of up to £2,500 Trading 
Standards

Video 
Recordings

Variable 
from 12 
and over

Video Recordings Acts 
of 1984 and 2010

Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Video 
games: 
PEGI rating 

Variable 
from 12 
and over

Video Recordings Acts 
of 1984 and 2010

Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Volatile 
substances 
/ solvents 

18 and 
over 

Intoxicating Substances 
(Supply) Act 1985

Unlimited fine and six 
months' imprisonment

Trading 
Standards

Method

3.12 The methods we use to test retailers vary depending on the item to be 
purchased, the retailer, their location and other sources of intelligence. In 
general terms, child volunteers who have received prior training, will be 
briefed to purchase a restricted product. 

3.13 A risk assessment is carried out for the children in each shop to 
determine the method to be used. This takes into account things like the 
size and layout of the shop and whether the alcohol has to be requested 
from a member of staff if it is stored behind the sales counter or if the 
children can select it themselves. Volunteers are instructed to give their 
correct ages if challenged by a shop keeper and they do not have any 
identification with them. 



5

3.14 If a sale takes place the children leave the shop and the age restricted 
item will be handed to an officer, who will take charge of it. The 
volunteers are then required to produce a written statement describing 
the events that took place. Whilst this is being done, officers will return to 
the shop to inform the seller what has just happened.

3.15 Child volunteers start as trainees at the age of 11 before retiring from the 
role, usually about the age of 15. 

Working with Businesses 

3.16 The Department of Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) is very keen to 
reduce regulatory burdens on businesses and the Better Regulation 
Delivery Office (BRDO, part of BIS) has issued a Code of Practice on 
Age Restricted Products that requires local authorities to ensure that 
enforcement of age restriction legislation is proportionate and that 
Enforcing Authorities should ‘prioritise the support they offer to 
businesses to those that are least likely to have robust compliance 
arrangements in place.

3.17 Proactive compliance checks with age restrictions is targeted based on 
any intelligence we received, those who have signed up to our 
Responsible Trader Scheme (see below for more information) and when 
considering other local risks based evidence.

3.18 We have a range of sanctions available following an illegal under-age 
sale. The most appropriate course of action after each illegal sale is 
always determined on a case-by-case basis taking into consideration the 
Council’s enforcement policy. Careful consideration is made of all the 
facts and evidence in each case, the procedures and controls the 
business has in place, staff training, previous history, how far they have 
gone to met any statutory defence available and any other mitigating 
factors.

3.19 If it is decided formal action should be taken, the following  options are 
available 

 Letter of Warning 
 Simple Caution 
 Prosecution 
 For any premises licensed to sell alcohol, we can also consider 

reviewing their licence as an additional sanction

3.20 For the last eight years, we have operated our free Responsible Trader 
Scheme that helps businesses to understand and comply with the 
various requirements of age restricted goods legislation.  Members of 
the scheme receive a complementary training pack and materials to help 
them implement controls and procedures to prevent illegal sales.



6

3.21 At the time of writing this report, we are in the process of printing a new 
supply of material after updating our training pack following legislative 
changes, feedback about the pervious contents and to reflect new ways 
of working. This ensures all information is accurate and up to date whilst 
at the same time, we have taken the opportunity to modernise the 
scheme’s logo and give everything a refreshing makeover to maintain its 
prominence and a professional appearance. 

3.22 Scheme members are subject to periodic audits to ensure they are 
operating within the terms and conditions and to maintain membership 
standards. An audit requires an inspection at the business premises, 
takes approximately an hour to do or longer if the business is found to 
need assistance or be non complaint in some way. At present, the 
scheme has 248 members, down from 267 at April 2015, (132 Brent and 
116 Harrow) of which 60 (37 Brent and 23 Harrow) have been audited 
this financial year. 

3.23 Where non compliance with the membership criteria is identified, Officers 
will do their best to support businesses making the required change/s to 
become compliant. Such businesses would then receive audits more 
frequently than members who are found to be fully complying with the 
terms and condition and their systems will be tested via underage sales 
visits. If members do not wish to, or are unable to cooperate, then they 
can have their membership terminated although this is rare. Businesses 
changing hands and operating under new ownership is our most 
common reason to terminate a member and then we try to recruit the 
new owner to the scheme. 

3.24 Membership of the scheme is voluntary but local businesses who sell 
age restricted goods are welcome to seek help and advice from us 
regardless of whether they are scheme members. 

3.25 Everyone involved in sales from on-licensed and off-licensed premises 
should be aware of their obligations under the Licensing Act 2003 
relating to the prevention of sales of alcohol to children as part of their 
training to become licence holders.

3.26 As a ‘responsible authority’ under the licensing legislation, we assess all 
premises alcohol license applications to check that the necessary steps 
have been taken to prevent underage sales. If we believe the standards 
and controls fall short, we can request the applicant makes 
improvements. Should these not be forthcoming, we can raise an 
objection with the licensing authority.

3.27 For a period of time several years ago, we started operating a ‘Shop the 
Shop’ scheme. This is an anonymous text messaging service which local 
businesses, school children and other members of the public, could use 
to send a text message alerting us to shops allegedly supplying products 
to those under the legal age to buy them. The idea of the initiative was to 



7

provide a simple method for people to notify us of problems without the 
need to follow the process of logging a formal complaint. 

3.28 This scheme assisted us to comply with the BRDO Code of Practice 
because it supplied us specific intelligence to focus where we carried out 
our enforcement. It also gave us an idea which wards in the boroughs 
were causing the greatest concern. Regrettably, the scheme does not 
currently operate due to a lack of resources.

Underage Sales Data in Brent & Harrow

3.29 Despite advice to businesses and the promotion of the scheme, there 
are still a small number of traders who continue to sell age-restricted 
goods to children.

3.30 The following table shows the results of our test-purchasing in 2014-15, 
with a direct comparison to the previous year.

Product Test purchases  
(no.)

Sales (no.) Failure rate (%)

B
re

nt
20

13
-1

4

B
re

nt
20

14
-1

5

H
ar

ro
w

20
13

-1
4

H
ar

ro
w

20
14

-1
5

B
re

nt
 

20
13

-1
4

B
re

nt
 

20
14

-1
5

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

13
-1

4

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

14
-1

5

B
re

nt
 

20
13

-1
4

B
re

nt
 

20
14

-1
5

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

13
-1

4

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

14
-1

5

Alcohol 78 35 104 88 4 0 10 2 5 0 9 2
Tobacco 31 73 17 22 1 3 1 5 3 4 6 18
Knife 6 5 1 4 1 0 0 0 16 0 0 0
Fireworks 25 0 1 27 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0
Spray Paint 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
E-Cigarettes 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Video 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 140 125 144 141 6 3 12 7 4 2 8 5

3.31 These figures show a slight improvement compared to the previous year 
in both boroughs. 

3.32 Obtaining accurate data to benchmark our performance against other 
local authorities is difficult because there is no central point or 
coordinating body to collate this information. However, figures obtained 
from the Trading Standards Institute’s England 2013-14 Tobacco Control 
Survey, states that from statistics they had analysed, illegal sales of 
cigarettes occurred in 10% of test purchase operations which is much 
higher than what we have seen locally.

3.33 The table overleaf shows the results of our underage test purchasing 
operations which have taken place this financial year 2015-2016.



8

Product Test 
purchases 

(no.)

Sales (no.) Failure rate 
(%)

B
re

nt
20

15
-1

6

H
ar

ro
w

20
15

-1
6

B
re

nt
 

20
15

-1
6

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

15
-1

6

B
re

nt
 

20
15

-1
6

H
ar

ro
w

 
20

15
-1

6

Alcohol 65 54 4 2 6 3
Tobacco 51 23 25 0 0 0
Knife 14 7 1 2 7 29
Fireworks 0 21 0 0 0 0

Spray Paint 0 0 0 0 0 0
E-Cigarettes 0 2 0 2 0 100
Video 1 0 0 0 0 0
Total 131 107 6 6 5 6

Examples of offending 

3.34 A Brent business owner was given a 12 month conditional discharge and 
ordered to pay more than £850 in costs, after his untrained employee 
sold a packet of cigarettes to a child of 16. The volunteer wasn’t asked 
their age or for identification and it later transpired the employee had 
never received any training from the business owner on the law relating 
to the sale of age restricted products.

3.35 In September 2015, another Brent shopkeeper was ordered to pay over 
£1,500 after being caught selling alcohol to a 13 year old girl who was 
accompanied by a 12-year-old. The defendant did not ask what age the 
girl was or for any identification, and sold the alcohol to her, later 
claiming that he was distracted at the time of sale as he was on the 
telephone and, as the girl was wearing nail polish, assumed that she 
was an adult.

3.36 Harrow team concluded an investigation in November 2015 where the 
sales person sold cigarettes to children despite knowing they were 
underage and passing comment that 14 year olds should not be 
smoking! The trader admitted he sold the cigarettes but claimed he was 
distracted at the time of the sale. The court, ordered him to pay fines and 
costs totalling £985.00. 

3.37 During March 2016, a Harrow off-licence owner was ordered to pay in 
excess of £6,000 after he sold a bottle of Famous Grouse whisky to a 13 
year old boy. Whilst at the shop, Officers discovered cigarettes that did 
not carry the correct health warnings which had been hidden under the 
counter. The defendant failed to appear at the Magistrates Court on two 
occasions despite an Officer speaking to him after he missed the first 
Court appearance. The case went ahead in his absence.  



9

3.38 In summary, underage test purchasing will remain a priority area for the 
Service as I strongly believe that our low number of non complaint 
businesses is directly attributable to the work we carry out to prevent 
illegal sales. Our advisory work with traders, promoting the Responsible 
Trader Scheme, regular test purchasing operations and publicity of the 
formal action taken against those who do offend, sends out a clear 
message that this legislation is taken seriously and we will check to 
make certain that all businesses are fully complying with the law. 

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no additional financial implications as this work formed part of 
our agreed work plan for 2015-2016.

5 STAFF IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Our work plan guides us to undertake 125 underage sales visits in Brent 
and 135 underage sales visits in Harrow each year. Each visit takes 
approximately one hour when you include preparation and travel and 
requires three officers. This permits two Officers to return to the business 
if a sale is made, whilst the third Officer can remain with the child 
volunteers. This totals approximately 375 hours of work in Brent and 405 
hours of work in Harrow. 

5.2 If an illegal sale takes place, then this requires investigation. Last year 
2014-15, 208 hours of staff time were spent in Brent and 231 hours of 
staff time in Harrow investigating underage sales offences and where 
appropriate pursuing formal action. 

5.3 This means that underage sales work equates to approximately 
seventeen weeks worth of work each year, per borough.  

6 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

6.1 Any person wishing to obtain more information should contact Simon 
Legg, Senior Regulatory Services Manager, Brent Civic Centre, 
Engineers Way, Wembley Middlesex HA9 0FJ. Telephone: (020) 8937 
5522.

SIMON LEGG
SENIOR REGULATORY SERVICE MANAGER




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Trading Standards Fees and charges 2016/17
	7 Underage Sales report 2015

